Tokyo Market Information

Corporate Action Data

Data Feed Service Specification (CSV File Format)

$(Ver. 2.1 \quad 2022.06.06)$

This file specification is applied on June 6, 2022.

JPX MARKET INNOVATION & RESEARCH, INC.

Record of Changes

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
1	1.0	2008/5/22		Initial publication
2	1.1	2008/7/7	5	The following comment is added. "Maximum length does not include single bite double quotation described below."
3			5,8,12,15,21,24 29,31,	The following comment has been changed. (Before)If the "Status" is either "New" or "D.Date" , no data will be set (After) If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set
4			5,8,12,15,21,24, 29,31	No.4 and No.5 The following header name has been changed. (Before) "Latest "Information (After) Latest Information
5			5,8,12,15,18,21 24,26,31,34,38	The following comment has been added for "Local Code". "9 digit are consisted of 4digit single bite space, 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code."
6			9	No.17 The following comment has been changed. (Before) If it is not determined yet,"999999999999999999999999999999999999
			10	No.38 The following comment has been changed. (Before) If it is not determined yet,"999999999999999999999999999999999999

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				No.47 The following comment has been changed.
7			11	(Before) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999999999999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999999999999999999
				No.24 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "9999999999999999999999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999" will be set.
8			16	
				No.25 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "9999999999999999999999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999" will be set.
				No.62 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "9999999999999999999999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999" will be set.
9			18	
				No.63 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "9999999999999999999999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999" will be set.
				No. 11 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999999999999999999
				(After) If it is not determined yet," 999999999999999999999999999999999999
4.5			24	
10			24	No.12 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999999999999999999
				(After) If it is not determined yet," 999999999999999999999999999999999999
				if inapplicable

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				(Remarks) See Attachment 3 for more details.
11			25	 No.17 The following comment has been changed. (Before) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999999999999999999
12			26	 (Alter) If it is not determined yet. 999999999999999999999999999999999999
13			28	 (After) If it is not determined yet, "999999999999999999999999999999999999
14			32	No.18 The following comment has been changed.

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "999999.9999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "99999.9999" will be set.
				No.19 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "9999999.9999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "99999.9999" will be set.
				No.29 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "999999.9999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "99999.9999" will be set.
15			33	
				No.30 The following comment has been changed.
				(Before) If it is not determined yet, "999999.9999" will be set.
				(After) If it is not determined yet, "99999.9999" will be set.
				The following comment has been removed.
16			34	(If "Effective Date" is earlier than new listing date, as it is initial record to set local code,
				Null will be set from Field 12 to Field 39 and Field 67 to Field 94.)
				No.13 The following comment has been changed.
17			34	(Before) " "(single bite space) is set.
				(After) null is set.
10				No.14 The following comment has been added.
18			34	In case otherwise, " "(single bite space) is set.
10				No.15 The following comment has been added.
19			34	In case otherwise, null is set.
			25	No.17 The following comment has been changed.
20			35	(Before) " "(single bite space) is set.

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				(After) null is set.
21			35	No.18,22,26,30 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, " "(single bite space) is set.
22			35	No.19,21,23,25,27,29,31,33 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, null is set.
23			36	No.34,38 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, " "(single bite space) is set.
24			36	No.35, 37,39 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, null is set.
25			38	No.69,73 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, " "(single bite space) is set.
26			38	No.68,70,72,74,76 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, null is set.
27			39	No.77,81,85 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, " "(single bite space) is set.
28			39	No.78,80,82,84,86,88 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, null is set.
29			40	No.89,93 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, " "(single bite space) is set.
30			40	No.90,92,94 The following comment has been added. In case otherwise, null is set.
31			45	The following comment has been added, *If Sector(Code) is 9999, "Null" will be set to Sector (Text).
32	1.2	2008/7/17	34	The following comment is added. "If "Effective Date" is earlier than new listing date, as it is initial record to set local code,

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				Null will be set from Field 12 to Field 39 and Field 67 to Field 94."
33	1.3	2009/1/5	21	No.13 The following field name has been changed. (Before)Certificate Submission (After)Record Date
34			22	No.24 The following field name has been changed. (Before)Certificate Submission Published Previously (After)Record Date Published Previously
35	1.4	2009/9/7	21	No.16 The following field name has been changed. (Before) Trading Suspended (After) Ex Date
36			22	No.27 The following field name has been changed. (Before) Trading Suspended Published Previously (After) Ex Date Published Previously
37	1.5	2010/10/4	35	 3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information No. 16 OSE Market Section (Code) (Before) "0204" (Hercules) (After) "0204" (OSE JASDAQ)
38			35	 3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information No. 17 OSE Market Section (Text) (Before) "HC" (0204) (After) "JQ" (0204)
39			38	 3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information No. 71 OSE Market Section (Code) (Before Change) (Before) "0204" (Hercules) (After) "0204" (OSE JASDAQ)

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
40			38	 3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information No. 72 OSE Market Section (Text) (Before Change) (Before) "HC" (0204) (After) "JQ" (0204)
41			42	Additional text is added: *No. 32、33、34、35、87、88、89、90 "JQ" indicates JASDAQ, before the merger with OSE effected on 2010/10/12
42	1.6	2012/4/27	34	Indicated the inclusion of TOKYO PRO Market Issues in the remarks for No. 12, "TSE Market Section(Code)" under "3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information"
43			38	Indicated the inclusion of TOKYO PRO Market Issues in the remarks for No. 67, "TSE Market Section(Code)" under "3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information"
44	1.7	2013/2/1	34	 3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information Removed the Indication of the inclusion of TOKYO PRO Market Issues in the remarks for No. 12, "TSE Market Section (Code)". Added "0105" (TOKYO PRO Market), "0106" (JASDAQ Standard), "0107" (JASDAQ
45			34	 Growth) to the data layout for No. 12, "TSE Market Section (Code)". 3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information Added "TPM" (0105), "JQS" (0106), "JQG" (0107) to the data layout for No. 13, "TSE Market Section (Text)".
46			38	 3.5.9 Change in Securities Master Information Removed the Indication of the inclusion of TOKYO PRO Market Issues in the remarks for No. 67, "TSE Market Section (Code) (Before Change)". Added "0105" (TOKYO PRO Market), "0106" (JASDAQ Standard), "0107" (JASDAQ

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				Growth) to the data layout for No. 67, "TSE Market Section (Code) (Before Change)".
				Added "TPM" (0105), "JQS" (0106), "JQG" (0107) to the data layout for No. 68, "TSE Market Section (Text) (Before Change)".
47			42	3.5.9 Change in Securities Master InformationFollowing text is added:*No. 16-19、71-74
				"OSE" indicates Osaka Securities Exchange, before the merger with TSE effective in July 2013.
48	1.8	2013/7/12	1	 2. Connection Removed the following comment. "Regardless of the connection method, the connection will be established by action from user system side." Removed the following method. "File transfer through the communication procedure established by the Federation of Bankers' Association of Japan " Added "2) File transfer through SFTP".
49			2	 3.1 Scope of Date to be Provided Following names of the files are changed (Old) 3) Bonus Issue Information / 5) Stock Consolidation Information (New) 3) Stock Split Information / 5) Reverse Stock Split Information Following items are added. 8) Information on Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call 9) Change in Company Name Information
50			3	 10) Change in Trading Unit Information Delisting Information 3.2 Overview of Files to be provided Following names of the file types are changed (Old) No.3 Bonus Issue Information / No.5 Stock Consolidation Information (New) No.3 Stock Split Information / No.5 Reverse Stock Split Information Following items are added. No.8 Information on Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				No.9 Change in Company Name Information
				No.10 Change in Trading Unit Information
				No.12 Delisting Information
51			4	3.4 Time of File Provision Added the indication of scheduled dissemination at specified time.
52			7-9	3.5.1 Cash Dividend Information Added No.39~48.
53			13-14	3.5.2 Public Offerings/Rights Issue Information Added No.53~64.
54			39-46	 3.5.11 Other Events Information Added No.35~80. No.7 Event (Code) Added "5" (Issuer's Request for General Shareholders Notification) to the data layout. No.8 Event(Text) Added "5" "Issuer's Request for General Shareholders Notification" (5) to the data layout. Following field name are changed. No.18 (Old) Ratio (Old Shares) (New) Ratio 1 (Old Shares) (New) Ratio 1 (Old Shares) No.19 (Old) Ratio (New Shares) No.20 (Old) Price (New) Issue Price No.29 (Old) Ratio Published Previously(Old) (New) Ratio 1 Published Previously(Old)
55			33-35, 36-37, 38, 47	 Following information is added. - 3.5.8 Information on Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call - 3.5.9 Change in Company Name Information - 3.5.10 Change in Trading Unit Information - 3.5.12 Delisting Information
56			11, 13, 15-16, 18,	Following items are changed to reserved field.

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
			20-21, 23-24	 3.5.2 Public Offerings/Rights Issue Information No.28 Dividend Ranking Date No.49 Dividend Ranking Date Published Previously 3.5.3 Stock Split Information No.17 Dividend Ranking Date No.18 Securities Payable No.28 Dividend Ranking Date Published Previously No.29 Securities Payable Published Previously 3.5.4 Merger/Equity Swap/Equity Transfer Information No.27 Certificate Submission No.30 Securities Payable No.33 Dividend Ranking Date No.34 Pari Passu Date No.65 Certificate Submission Published Previously No.71 Dividend Ranking Date Published Previously No.72 Pari Passu Date Published Previously 3.5.5 Reverse Stock Split Information No.15 Securities Payable No.17 Trading Resumed No.26 Securities Payable Published Previously
57	1.9	2016/2/1	4	 3.4 Time of File Provision Changed "Data record start time" and "Data record end time" as follows to describe the time in seconds <data record="" start="" time=""></data> Before Change: 18:31 > After Change: 18:31:00 <data end="" record="" time=""></data> Before Change: HH:30 > After Change: HH:30:59
58	1.9.1	2017/2/27	23,24	3.5.5 Reverse Stock Split InformationChanged "Len" of No.11, 12, 22, 23 to "22".

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
59			57	5 Contact - Changed the email address as follows. Before Change: tminfo@tse.or.jp After Change: tminfo@jpx.co.jp
60	1.9.5	2021/8/23	1	 Harmonized the version number with Japanese version 2. Connection File transfer through FTP Deleted the following lines FTP using the integrated Service Digital Network (ISDN) provided by NTT East Japan Added the following lines FTP using arrownet 2) File transfer through SFTP* Deleted the following items Details of file transfer through SFTP will be described in "Specification for Connecting to Data Feed Server" scheduled for revision. 3. 4 Time of File Provision Modified time of file provision TSE will update each files listed in above 3.1 once a day and provide the files every business day. < <<p>Scheduled distribution at specified time> Modified as follows Except for "Change in Company Name," "Change in Trading Unit," "Delisting," and "Change in Securities Master," the data outlined in 3.1 above will be generated and distributed by overwriting existing files every hour from 12:00 to 19:00 of every business day. The last file generated on a certain day will be available until file provision time on the next business day. </p>
61	2.0	2022/4/4	48,49,67	3. 5. 13 Change in Securities Master Information

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				Corrected No.12 TSE Market Section(Code) as follows. "0111"(Prime), "0112"(Standard), "0113"(Growth), "0105"(TOKYO PRO Market), "0109" "others", In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.
				Corrected No.13 TSE Market Section(Text) as follows. "PRM"(0111),"STD"(0112),"GRT"(0113),"TPM" (0105) ,"others" (0109) ,In all other cases, null is set.
				Corrected No.20 NSE Market Section(Code) as follows. "0301" (NSE Premier) ,"0302" (NSE Main) ,"0303" (NSE Next) ,"0309" (others) ,In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.
				Corrected No.21 NSE Market Section(Text) as follows. "NPR"(0301),"NMA"(0302),"NNX"(0303),"others"(0309) ,In all other cases, null is set.
				Corrected No.67 TSE Market Section(Code) (Before Change) as follows. "0111"(Prime), "0112"(Standard), "0113"(Growth), "0105"(TOKYO PRO Market), "0109"(others), In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.
				Corrected No.68 TSE Market Section(Text) (Before Change) as follows. "PRM"(0111),"STD"(0112),"GRT"(0113),TPM"(0105),"others"(0109)、 In all other cases, null is set.
				Corrected No.75 NSE Market Section(Code) as follows. "0301"(NSE Premier),"0302"(NSE Main),"0303"(NSE Next),"309" (NSE others),In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.
				Corrected No.76 NSE Market Section(Text) (Before Change) as follows. "NPR"(0301),"NMA" (0302), "NNX"(0303), "others"(0309),In all other cases, null is set.
			1,2,3,4,6,7,9,23,24	1. Overview Corrected Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc.(TSE) to JPX Market Innovation & Research, Inc. (JPXI)
62	2.1	2022/6/6	,33,34,35,36,40,44 ,47,48, 59	2. Connection Corrected TSE to JPXI

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				3. 1 Scope of Data to be Provided Corrected TSE to JPXI
				Corrected (8) as follows. Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call/Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders Information
				 3. 2 Overview of Files to be provided Corrected No.8 as follows. Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call/ Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders Information
				Added No.11 as follows. Company Split by Split-off and Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary",
				 5. 1. Cash Dividend Information Added No.15,29 as follows. Data Layout: (Including commemorative and special dividends)
				Corrected No.16,17,30,31 as follows. Field Name: Reserved Field Data Layout: NULL is set. Remarks: -
				Added No.49,50,51,52 as follows Field Name: Commemorative Dividend Rate, Special Dividend Rate, Commemorative Dividend Rate Published Previously, Special Dividend Rate Published Previously
				No.49,51 Data Layout: (Unit:1 yen). Commemorative Dividend Rate are per share. If undetermined, "99999999999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.
				No.50,52 Data Layout: (Unit:1yen). Special Dividend Rate are per share. If undetermined, " 99999999999999999999999999999999999

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				NULL is set if not applicable. Len:28 Remarks: See Attachment 3 for more details. 3. 5. 5 Reverse Stock Split Information Corrected No.13 as follows. Field Name: Actual Record Date Corrected No.15 as follows. Field Name: Record Date Data Layout: YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) Corrected No.24 as follows. Field Name: Actual Record Date Published Previously Corrected No.26 as follows. Field Name: Record Date Published Previously Data Layout: YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) 3. 5. 8 Corrected 3. 5. 8 as follows. Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call /Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders Information Added No.10,11,17,18,25,26,32,33 as follows Data Layout: NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders. Added No.11 as follows Data Layout: Record Date for Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call Added No.12 as follows Data Layout: Effective Date for Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call Added No.13,15,16,28,30,31 as follows Data Layout: or Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				 Added No.14 as follows Data Layout: Null is set. Added No.19 as follows Field Name: Cash Consideration Data Layout: or cash consideration for one share upon the Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders. Added No.29 as follows Data Layout: NULL is set. Corrected No.34 as follows. Field Name: Cash Consideration Published Previously Data Layout: or cash consideration for one share upon the Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders. Added No.41 as follows Field Name: Type(Code) Data Layout: "1" (Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders), "2" (Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call) Len:1
				 Added No.42 as follows Field Name: Type(Text) Data Layout: "Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders" (1) Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call 3. 5. 11 Other Events Information Added No.7 as follows Data Layout: "6"(Company Split by Split-off),"7"(Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary), Added No.8 as follows Data Layout: "Company Split by Split-off"(6), "Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary"(7)

No	version	Date	Pages	Changes
				Added No.49 as follows Data Layout: stocks Added No.72 as follows Remarks: (Excludes common stock at Company Split by Split-off and Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary.) Added No.81,82,83,84 as follows Field Name: Reserved Field, Name of Allotted issue, Reserved Field, Name of Allotted issue Published Previously No.81,83 Data Layout: NULL is set. No.82 Data Layout: Set for Company Split by Split-off or Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary. If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable. No.84 Data Layout: If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable. No.84 Data Layout: If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable. Len:240 5. Contact
				Corrected Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. Information Services Department to Client Service Department, JPX Market Innovation & Research, Inc.

Table of Contents

	Page
1. Overview • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1
2. Connection • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1
3. Provision Method • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	2
3.1 Scope of Date to be Provided · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2
3.2 Overview of Files to be provided • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	3
3.3 How to provide files when no data are recorded · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	4
3.4 Time of File Provision • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	4
3.5 Data Format • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	5
3.5.1 Cash Dividend Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	5
3.5.2 Public Offerings/Rights Issue Information · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	10
3.5.3 Stock Split Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	15
3.5.4 Merger/Equity Swap/Equity Transfer Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	17
3.5.5 Reverse Stock Split Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	23
3.5.6 Tender Offer Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	26
3.5.7 General Meeting Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	31
3.5.8 Information on Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	33
3.5.9 Change in Company Name Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	37
3.5.10 Change in Trading Unit Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	39
3.5.11 Other Events Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	40
3.5.12 Delisting Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	48
3.5.13 Change in Securities Master Information • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	49
4. Operation in Case of System Failure · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	58
5. Contact • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	58
Appendix 1 (Details on Reference Number)	59
Appendix 2 (Sector Code and Sector Name)	60
Appendix 3 Posting of Numerical Data	61

1. Overview

This specification describes necessary information in utilizing Tokyo Market Information (TMI) Corporate Action Data Feed Service provided by JPX Market Innovation & Research, Inc (JPXI).

2. Connection

The connection between JPXI's Data Feed System and the user is made possible under following methods. Please refer to "Specification for Connecting to Data Feed Server" for details.

1) File transfer through FTP

FTP using the Internet

FTP using arrownet

2) File transfer through SFTP

SFTP using the Internet

3. Provision Method

3. 1 Scope of Data to be Provided

Corporate action information for domestic (Japanese) companies listed on Japanese stock exchanges are provided through this service. Corporate actions by foreign companies and foreign products (ETF, DR, REIT, JDR and so on) are not covered.

The following files are provided (files are created and provided for each type of action.) Please note that, at its discretion, files may not be provided by the JPXI.

(1) Cash Dividend Information
(2) Public Offering/Rights Issue Information
(3) Stock Split Information
(4) Merger/Equity Swap/Equity Transfer Information
(5) Reverse Stock Split Information
(6) Tender Offer Information
(7) General Shareholders Meeting Information
(8) Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call/Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders Information
(9) Change in Company Name Information
(10) Change in Trading Unit Information

(11) Other Events Information

(12) Delisting Information

(13) Change in Securities Master Information

3. 2 Overview of Files to be provided

The files provided are as follows:

No.	File Type	Summary
1	Cash Dividend Information	Dividend (Result/Forecast) amount per share, the record date, ex-date, payable date and etc. for listed company are provided.
2	Public Offerings/Rights Issue Information	Board meeting date, issue price, number of new shares, debit date, subscription period, ratio and etc. are provided. Information on third-party placement is not provided.
3	Stock Split Information	Board meeting date, record date, ratio, effective date, ex-date and etc. are provided.
4	Merger/Equity Swap/Equity Transfer Information	Board meeting date, shareholder's meeting date, record date, allotment ratio of new shares, cash consideration and name of other party are provided.
5	Reverse Stock Split Information	Board meeting date, shareholder's meeting date, ratio, effective date and etc. are provided.
6	Tender Offer Information	Focusing on the purchasing entity in tender offer, data is classified as either a "TOB" or a "Buyback." When a listed company makes a tender offer for its own shares, this is classified as a "Buyback"; when another company makes a tender offer for listed shares of public company, this is classified as a "TOB." Note that this does not cover tender offers by public companies for unlisted corporations. Information provided includes number of shares, price, subscription start and subscription end dates, settlement start date, and data on acquirer.
7	General Shareholders Meeting Information	The record date, ex-date, actual record date and meeting date of annual and extraordinary shareholders' meetings are provided under this menu. For annual shareholders' meeting, the information will be provided on 10 days prior to its record date with meeting date set as TBA (to be announced). The meeting date will be provided later based on the company's financial report.
8	Acquisiton of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call/ Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders Information	
9	Change in Company Name Information	Company name, effective date, etc. are provided, generally after the publication of alteration listing information from the exchange.
10	Change in Trading Unit Information	Trading unit, effective date, etc. are provided, generally after the publication of alteration listing information from the exchange.
11	Other Events Information	The record date, ex-date, effective date, subscription period, ratio and price are provided for events such as allotment of stocks, subscription rights, Company Split by Split-off and Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary,offering of subscription rights to shareholders, non cash dividend.
12	Delisting Information	Delisting date, etc. are provided.
13	Change in Securities Master Information	Changes in listed company's name, registrar, trading units, fiscal term, dividend record date noted in Articles of Incorporation and etc. are provided.

3. 3 File provision when no data is recorded

If no new data is created at the time of provision, a blank file with only field names is generated and provided.

3. 4 Time of File Provision

JPXI will update each files listed in above 3.1 once a day and provide the files every business day to subscribers. Files are existed till the files are replaced by the files on the next business day.

In principle, the distributed files contain the same information disclosed on the web on the same day.

With some exceptions (*1), the file distribution time schedule can be selected from the two patterns described below. Distribution is based on a data-accumulation method. Data generated within one hour prior to each fixed time can be identified by "notification date".

(*1) Information on "Change in Company Name," "Change in Trading Unit," "Delisting," and "Change in Securities Master" are distributed on a daily basis only.

<Scheduled distribution at specified time>

Except for "Change in Company Name," "Change in Trading Unit," "Delisting," and "Change in Securities Master," the data outlined in 3.1 above will be generated and distributed by overwriting existing files every hour from 12:00 to 19:00 of every business day. The last file generated on a certain day will be available until file provision time on the next business day.

In principle, the distributed files contain the same information disclosed on the web on the same day.

Data record start time (*2)		18:31:00 on the previous business day								
Data record end time (*2)	11:30:59	12:30:59	13:30:59	14:30:59	15:30:59	16:30:59	17:30:59	18:30:59		
Files containing data generated in the above time ranges are be created at (*3)	12:00	13:00	14:00	15:00	16:00	17:00	18:00	19:00		

(*2) Data for which the "Announcement Date/Time" falls between the start and end times of the applicable range are distributed in each respective file.

(*3) Files may be generated before the scheduled time depending on the time required to process the data.

3. 5 Data Format

The following conditions are applied to all types of corporate action events.

- "Field Name" will be set in the first line of the CSV file.
- One byte comma is set between each field.
- Len (Length) specifies the maximum length of the data. Maximum length does not include the single bite double quotation marks described below.
- In all files, each data item is surrounded by single bite double quotation marks ("). Field names are also surrounded by (")

This format is also applied to data in which Null is set, in which case the field will appear as "".

However, (") will not be displayed if the file is a CSV file opened in Microsoft®* Excel.

*Microsoft® is a registered trademark of Microsoft® Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI (Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1B' (Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
9	Date of Board Meeting	YYYYMMDD	8	
10	Interim/Final(Code)	"1"(Interim), "2"(Final)	1	

3. 5. 1. Cash Dividend Information (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 23 to Field 36 and from Field 44 to Field 48.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
11	Interim/Final(Text)	"Interim"(1), "Final"(2)	140	
12	Forecast/Result(Code)	"1"(Result), "2"(Forecast)	1	
13	Forecast/Result(Text)	"Result"(1), "Forecast"(2)	140	
14	Interim/Final Term	YYYYMM for the record date is set. NULL is set if not applicable.	6	Generally, Null is not set.
15	Gross Dividend Rate	Dividend amount per share is set.(Including commemorative and special dividends) (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	28	See Attachment 3 for more details. Generally, Null is not set.
16	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	1	
17	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	140	
18	Record Date	YYYYMMDD Record date is set by issuer to identify shareholders entitled to receive cash dividend. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	Generally, Null is not set.
19	Ex Date	YYYYMMDD NULL is set if not applicable.	8	Generally, Null is not set.
20	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD NULL is set if not applicable.	8	Generally, Null is not set
21	Payable Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
22	Remarks		450	
23	Date of Board Meeting Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
24	Interim/Final Published Previously(Code)	"1"(Interim), "2"(Final)	1	
25	Interim/Final Published Previously(Text)	"Interim"(1), " Final"(2)	140	
26	Forecast/Result Published Previously(Code)	"1"(Result), "2"(Forecast)	1	
27	Forecast/Result Published Previously(Text)	"Result"(1), "Forecast"(2)	140	
28	Interim/Final Term	YYYYMM for the record date is set.	6	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.		
29	Gross Dividend Rate Published Previously	Dividend amount per share is set. (Including commemorative and special dividends) (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.
30	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	1	
31	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	140	
32	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
33	Ex Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
34	Actual Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
35	Payable Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
36	Remarks Published Previously		450	
37	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1B'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
38	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1B'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
39	Distribution Amount	Data appears In cases where the company pays dividends accompanied by a decrease in additional paid-in capital (excluding split-type corporate divestures) and the information from JASDEC is provided in Target. Distribution amount is per share. (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.
40	Retained Earnings	Data appears In cases where the company pays dividends accompanied by a decrease in additional paid-in capital (excluding split-type corporate divestures) and the information from	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
		JASDEC is provided in Target. Retained earnings are per share. (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999		
41	Deemed Dividend	Data appears In cases where the company pays dividends accompanied by a decrease in additional paid-in capital (excluding split-type corporate divestures) and the information from JASDEC is provided in Target. Deemed dividend is per share. (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "9999999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details. The information from JASDEC has 10 digimal places
42	Deemed Capital Gains	Data appears In cases where the company pays dividends accompanied by a decrease in additional paid-in capital (excluding split-type corporate divestures) and the information from JASDEC is provided in Target. Deemed capital gains are per share. (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, " 99999999999999999999999999999999999	21	See Attachment 3 for more details. The information from JASDEC has 10 digimal places
43	Net Asset Decrease Ratio	Data appears In cases where the company pays dividends accompanied by a decrease in additional paid-in capital (excluding split-type corporate divestures) and the information from JASDEC is provided in Target. Net asset decrease ratio is set. If undetermined," 99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details. The information from JASDEC has 3 digimal places
44	Distribution Amount Published Previously	(Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.
45	Retained Earnings Published Previously	(Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "99999999999999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.
46	Deemed Dividend Published Previously	(Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
47	Deemed Capital Gains Published Previously	(Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "99999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.

Tokyo Market Information File Specification (Corporate Action)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
48	Net Asset Decrease Ratio Published Previously	If undetermined, " 99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
49	Commemorative Dividend Rate	(Unit:1 yen). Commemorative Dividend Rate are per share. If undetermined, "99999999999999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.
50	Special Dividend Rate	(Unit:1 yen). Special Dividend Rate are per share. If undetermined, "9999999999999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.
51	Commemorative Dividend Rate Published Previously	(Unit:1 yen). Commemorative Dividend Rate are per share. If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.
52	Special Dividend Rate Published Previously	(Unit:1 yen). Special Dividend Rate are per share. If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	28	See Attachment 3 for more details.

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1D'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
9	Type(Code)	"1"(Public Offer), "2"(Rights Issue)	1	
10	Type(Text)	"Public Offer"(1), "Rights Issue"(2)	140	
11	Date of Board Meeting	YYYYMMDD	8	
12	Record Date	YYYYMMDD If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	8	
13	Ex Date	YYYYMMDD If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	8	
14	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	8	
15	Ratio(Old Shares)	When the allotment ratio is displayed as (Old Allotment Ratio : New Allotment Ratio), The "Old Allotment Ratio" is set (e.g. if the ratio is 1 : 0.1, shareholders possessing 1 share are entitled to receive 0.1 new shares). If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
16	Ratio(New Shares)	When the allotment ratio is displayed as (Old Allotment Ratio : New Allotment Ratio), The "New Allotment Ratio" is set Allotment Ratio" is set If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.

3. 5. 2 Public Offerings/Rights Issue Information (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 30 to Field 50 and from Field 59 to Field 64.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
17	Issue Price	Unit:1 yen If undetermined,"999999999999999999999999999999999999	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
18	Issue Price Setting Date(Earliest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	In case of rights issue, Null will be set in principle.
19	Issue Price Setting Date(Latest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	In case of rights issue, Null will be
20	Issue Price Setting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	set in principle.
21	Date (Earliest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
22	Scheduled Debit Date (Latest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
23	Debit Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
24	Subscription Start	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
25	Subscription End	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
26	Number of New Shares	Increment: 1 share If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	27	See Attachment 3 for more details.
27	Subsequent Listing Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
28	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
29	Remarks		450	
30	Type Published Previously(Code)	"1"(Public Offer), "2"(Rights Issue)	1	
31	Type Published Previously(Text)	"Public Offer"(1), "Rights Issue"(2)	140	
32	Date of Board Meeting Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
33	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	8	
34	Ex Date Published Previously	If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	8	
35	Actual Record Date Published Previously		8	
36	Ratio Published	If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	11	See Attachment 3

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Previously(Old			for more details.
37	Shares) Ratio Published Previously(New Shares)	If "Type" is "Public Offer", NULL is set.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
38	Issue Price Published Previously	Unit:1 yen If undetermined,"999999999999999999999999999999999999	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
39	Issue Price Setting Date Published Previously (Earliest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
40	Issue Price Setting Date Published Previously (Latest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
41	Issue Price Setting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
42	Scheduled Debit Date Published Previously (Earliest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
43	Scheduled Debit Date Published Previously (Latest)	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
44	Debit Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
45	Subscription Start Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
46	Subscription End Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
47	Number of New Shares Published Previously	Increment: 1 share If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	27	See Attachment 3 for more details.
48	Subsequent Listing Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
49	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
50	Remarks Published Previously		450	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
51	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1D'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
52	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1D'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
53	New Security Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee. Data will appear when there is a "When issued transaction". Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code. If undetermined, "space (9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
54	New Security ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee. Data will appear when there is a "When issued transaction". If undetermined, "space (12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
55	New Security Trading Start Date	Data will appear when there is a "When issued transaction"YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
56	New Security Trading End Date	Data will appear when there is a "When issued transaction"YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
57	New Security Settlement Date	Data will appear when there is a "When issued transaction" YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
58	JASDEC Account Consolidation Date	Data will appear when there is a "When issued transaction"YYYYMMDD (When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
59	New Security Local Code Published Previously	If undetermined "space (9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
60	New Security ISIN Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
61	New Security Trading	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Start Date Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.		
62	New Security Trading End Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
63	NewSecuritySettlementDatePublishedPreviously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
64	JASDEC Account Consolidation Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	

3. 5. 3 Stock Split Information (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 20 to Field 30.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1F'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
9	Date of Board Meeting	YYYYMMDD	8	
10	Meeting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
11	Record Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
12	Ratio (Old Shares)	When the split ratio is displayed as (Old Split Ratio : New Split Ratio), The "Old Split Ratio" is set (e.g. if the ratio is 1 : 1.5, shareholders possessing 1 share will own 1.5 shares as of the effective date).	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
13	Ratio (New Shares)	When the split ratio is displayed as (Old Split Ratio : New Split Ratio), The "New Split Ratio" is set.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
14	Effective Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
15	Ex Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
16	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
17	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
18	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
19	Remarks		450	
20	Date of Board Meeting Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
21	Meeting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
22	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
23	Ratio Published Previously(Old Shares)		11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
24	Ratio Published Previously(New Shares)		11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
25	Effective Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
26	Ex Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
27	Actual Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
28	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
29	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
30	Remarks Published Previously		450	
31	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1F'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
32	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1F'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.

3. 5. 4 Merger/Equity Swap/Equity Transfer Information (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 46 to Field 83.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '23'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Type(Code)	"1"(Merger), "2"(Swap), "3"(Transfer)	1	
7	Type(Text)	"Merger"(1), "Swap"(2), "Transfer"(3)	140	
8	Simplified/Short Form (Code)	"1"(Simplified), "2"(Short Form), "9"(TBA) Null is set if not applicable.	1	
9	Simplified/Short Form (Text)	"Simplified"(1), "Short Form"(2), "TBA"(9) Null is set if not applicable.	140	
10	Date of Board Meeting	YYYYMMDD	8	
11	Meeting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
12	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
13	Name	Company name	240	
14	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
15	After Effective Date(Code)	"0"(Surviving), "1"(Dissolving), "2"(Parent Company), "3"(Subsidiary), "9"(TBA)	1	
16	After Effective Date(Text)	"Surviving"(0), "Dissolving"(1), "Parent Company"(2), "Subsidiary"(3), "TBA"(9)	140	
17	Effective Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
18	Securities to be Paid	If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set.	9	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	(Local Code)	NULL is set if not applicable		
19	Reserved Field	Null will be set.	240	
20	Securities to be Paid (Name)	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	240	
21	Securities to be Paid (ISIN)	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	12	
22	Record Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
23	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
24	Ratio(Old Shares)	If undetermined,"999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
25	Ratio(New Shares)	If undetermined,"999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
26	Cash Consideration	Unit:1 yen If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
27	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
28	Last Trading Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
29	Delisting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
30	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
31	Registration Date of New Company	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable. Applicable in equity transfers and mergers in which all counterparties dissolve and a newly incorporated company absorbs all rights and duties	8	
32	Board Lot Size of New Company	Increment: 1 share Board lot size for newly incorporated company (If undetermined,"99999999" will be set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	See Attachment 3 for more details.
33	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
34	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
35	Counterparty 1-Local Code	If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	9	
36	Counterparty 1-Name	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	240	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
37	Counterparty 1-ISIN	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	12	
38	Counterparty 1-After Effective Date(Code)	"0"(Surviving), "1"(Dissolving), "2"(Parent Company), "3"(Subsidiary), "9"(TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
39	Counterparty 1-After Effective Date(Text)	"Surviving"(0), "Dissolving"(1), "Parent Company"(2), "Subsidiary"(3), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
40	Counterparty 2-Local Code	If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	9	
41	Counterparty 2-Name	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	240	
42	Counterparty 2-ISIN	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	12	
43	Counterparty 2-After Effective Date(Code)	"0"(Surviving), "1"(Dissolving), "2"(Parent Company), "3"(Subsidiary), "9"(TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
44	Counterparty 2-After Effective Date(Text)	"Surviving"(0), "Dissolving"(1), "Parent Company"(2), "Subsidiary"(3), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
45	Remarks		450	
46	Simplified/Short Form Published Previously (Code)	"1"(Simplified), "2"(Short Form), "9"(TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
47	Simplified/Short Form Published Previously (Text)	"Simplified"(1), "Short Form"(2), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
48	Date of Board Meeting Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
49	Meeting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
50	Local Code Published Previously	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
51	Name Published Previously	Abbreviated name for the issue	240	
52	ISIN Published Previously	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
53	After Effective Date Published Previously(Code)	"0"(Surviving), "1"(Dissolving), "2"(Parent Company), "3"(Subsidiary), "9"(TBA)	1	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
54	After Effective Date Published Previously(Text)	"Surviving"(0), "Dissolving"(1), "Parent Company"(2), "Subsidiary"(3), "TBA"(9)	140	
55	Effective Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
56	Securities to be Paid Published Previously(Local Code)	If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	9	
57	Reserved Field	Null will be set.	240	
58	Securities to be Paid Published Previously(Name)	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	240	
59	Securities to be Paid Published Previously(ISIN)	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	12	
60	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
61	Actual Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
62	Ratio Published Previously(Old Shares)	If undetermined,"999999999999999999999999999999999999	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
63	Ratio Published Previously(New Shares)	If undetermined,"999999999999999999999999999999999999	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
64	Cash Consideration Published Previously	Unit:1 yen If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
65	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
66	Last Trading Date Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
67	Delisting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
68	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
69	0	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Published Previously	Applicable in equity transfers and mergers in which all counterparties dissolve and a newly incorporated company absorb all rights and duties		
70	Board Lot Size of New Company Published Previously	Increment: 1 share Board lot size for newly incorporated company(If undetermined,"999999999" will be set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	See Attachment 3 for more details.
71	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
72	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
73	Counterparty 1-Local Code Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	9	
74	Counterparty 1-Name Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	240	
75	Counterparty 1-ISIN Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	12	
76	Counterparty 1-After Effective Date Published Previously(Code)	"0"(Surviving), "1"(Dissolving), "2"(Parent Company), "3"(Subsidiary), "9"(TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
77	Counterparty 1-After Effective Date Published Previously(Text)	"Surviving"(0), "Dissolving"(1), "Parent Company"(2), "Subsidiary"(3), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
78	Counterparty 2-Local Code Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	9	
79	Counterparty 2-Name Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	240	
80	Counterparty 2-ISIN Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable	12	
81	Counterparty 2-After Effective Date Published Previously(Code)	"0"(Surviving), "1"(Dissolving), "2"(Parent Company), "3"(Subsidiary), "9"(TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
82	Counterparty 2-After Effective Date	"Surviving"(0), "Dissolving"(1), "Parent Company"(2), "Subsidiary"(3), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Published Previously(Text)			
83	Remarks Published Previously		450	
84	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '23'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
85	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '23'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.

3. 5. 5 Reverse Stock Split Information (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 20 to Field 30.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '27'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name for the issue	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
9	Date of Board Meeting	YYYYMMDD	8	
10	Meeting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
11	Ratio(Old Shares)	When the reverse split ratio is displayed as (Old Reverse Split Ratio : New Reverse Split Ratio), The "Old Reverse Split Ratio" is set (e.g. if the ratio is 3 : 1, shareholders possessing 3 shares will own 1 share as of the effective date).	22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
12	Ratio(New Shares)	When the reverse split ratio is displayed as (Old Reverse Split Ratio : New Reverse Split Ratio), The "New Reverse Split Ratio" is set.	22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
13	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
14	Effective Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
15	Record Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
16	Ex Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
17	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
18	Board Lot Size after Reverse Stock Split	Increment: 1 share Trading unit after the Reverse Stock Split (If undetermined,"99999999" will be set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	See Attachment 3 for more details.
19	Remarks		450	
20	Date of Board Meeting Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
21	Meeting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
22	Ratio Published Previously(Old Shares)		22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
23	Ratio Published Previously(New Shares)		22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
24	Actual Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
25	Effective Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
26	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
27	Ex Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
28	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	8	
29	Board Lot Size after Reverse Stock Split Published Previously	Increment: 1 share Trading unit after the Reverse Stock Split (If undetermined,"99999999" will be set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	See Attachment 3 for more details.
30	Remarks Published Previously		450	
31	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '27'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
32	Previous Reference	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn	15	See Attachment 1

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Number	YYYYMMDD : Announcement date		for more details.
		xx : '27'(Fixed identifier)		
		nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date		
		If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.		

3. 5. 6 **Tender Offer Information** (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 37 to Field 65.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '29'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Type(Code)	"1"(TOB), "2"(Buyback Offer)	1	
7	Type(Text)	"TOB"(1), "Buyback Offer"(2)	140	
8	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
9	Name	Company name	240	
10	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
11	Number of Shares	Increment: 1 share If undetermined" 999999999999999999999999999999999999	27	See Attachment 3 for more details.
12	Excessive Number of Shares	Increment: 1 share If undetermined" 999999999999999999999999999999999999	27	See Attachment 3 for more details.
13	Upper Limit Set for Number of Shares (Code)	"1"(Upper Limit in Place), "2"(No Upper Limit), "9"(TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
14	Upper Limit Set for Number of Shares (Text)	"Upper Limit in Place"(1), "No Upper Limit"(2), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
15	Lower Limit Set for Number of Shares	"1"(Lower Limit in Place), "2"(No Lower Limit), "9"(TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	

	(Code)			
16	Lower Limit Set for Number of Shares (Text)	"Lower Limit in Place"(1), "No Lower Limit"(2), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
17	Price	Unit:1 yen If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
18	Subscription Start	YYYYMMDD	8	
19	Subscription End	YYYYMMDD	8	
20	Settlement Start	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
21	Offerer 1-Local Code	NULL is set if not applicable	9	If Type is "Buyback Offer" Null will be set.
22	Offerer 1-Name	NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
23	Offerer 1-ISIN	NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
24	Offerer 2-Local Code	NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
25	Offerer 2-Name	NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
26	Offerer 2-ISIN	NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
27	TOB Agent	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	240	
28	TOB Sub-Agent	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	240	
29	Assent of Company (Code)	"1"(Assent), "2" (No Assent), "3" (TBA) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
30	Assent of Company (Text)	"Assent"(1), "No Assent"(2), "TBA"(3) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
31	Restriction of Subscription by Foreign Investors (Code)	"1" (Restriction in Place), "0"(No Restriction), "9" (TBA) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
32	Restriction of Subscription by Foreign Investors (Text)	"Restriction in Place"(1), "No Restriction" (0), "TBA"(9) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
33	Number of Shares(Result)	Increment: 1 share Actual number of shares bought will be set. If undetermined" 999999999999999999999999999999999999	27	See Attachment 3 for more details.

		NULL is set if not applicable.		
	Application of Pro	"1"(Applied), "0"(Not Applied), "9" (TBA)		
34	Rata Method (Code)	NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
35	Application of Pro	"Applied" (1), "Not Applied" (0), "TBA" (9)	140	
	Rata Method (Text)	NULL is set if not applicable.	_	
36	Remarks		450	
37	Local Code Published Previously	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
38	Name Published Previously	English company name	240	
39	ISIN Published Previously	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
40	Number of Shares Published Previously	Increment: 1 share If undetermined" 999999999999999999999999999999999999	27	See Attachment 3 for more details.
41	Excessive Number of Shares Published Previously	Increment: 1 share If undetermined" 999999999999999999999999999999999999	27	See Attachment 3for more details.
42	Upper Limit Set for Number of Shares Published Previously (Code)	"1" (Upper Limit in Place), "2" (No Upper Limit), "9" (TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
43	Upper Limit Set for Number of Shares Published Previously (Text)	"Upper Limit in Place" (1), "No Upper Limit" (2), "TBA" (9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
44	Lower Limit Set for Number of Shares Published Previously (Code)	"1" (Lower Limit in Place), "2" (No Lower Limit), "9" (TBA) NULL is set if not applicable	1	
45	Lower Limit Set for Number of Shares Published Previously (Text)	"Lower Limit in Place" (1), "No Lower Limit" (2), "TBA" (9) NULL is set if not applicable	140	
46	Price Published Previously	Unit:1 yen If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
47	Subscription Start	YYYYMMDD	8	

	Published Previously			
48	Subscription End Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
49	Settlement Start Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
50	Offerer 1-Local Code Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable	9	
51	Offerer 1-Name Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
52	Offerer 1-ISIN Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
53	Offerer 2-Local Code Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
54	Offerer 2-Name Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
55	Offerer 2-ISIN Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
56	TOB Agent Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	240	
57	TOB Sub-Agent Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	240	
58	Assent of Company Published Previously (Code)	"1"(Assent), "2" (No Assent), "3" (TBA) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
59	Assent of Company Published Previously (Text)	"Assent" (1), "No Assent" (2), "TBA" (3) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
60	Restriction of Subscription by Foreign Investors Published Previously (Code)	"1" (Restriction in Place), "0" (No Restriction), "9" (TBA) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
61	Restriction of Subscription by Foreign Investors Published Previously (Text)	"Restriction in Place" (1), "No Restriction" (0), "TBA" (9) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
62	Number of Shares	Increment: 1 share	27	See Attachment

	Published Previously(Result)	Actual number of shares bought will be set. If undetermined" 999999999999999999999999999999999999		3 for more details.
63	Application of Pro Rata Method Published Previously (Code)	"1" (Applied), "0" (Not Applied), "9" (TBA) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
64	Application of Pro Rata Method Published Previously (Text)	"Applied" (1), "Not Applied" (0), "TBA" (9) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
65	Remarks Published Previously		450	
66	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '29'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
67	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '29'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.

3. 5. 7 General Shareholders Meeting Information (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 15 to Field 20.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '21'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Type(Code)	"1"(Ordinary), "2" (Extraordinary)	1	
7	Type(Text)	"Ordinary" (1), "Extraordinary" (2)	140	
8	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
9	Name	Company name	240	
10	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
11	Record Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
12	Ex Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
13	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
14	Meeting Date	YYYYMMDD (When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	
15	Type Published Previously(Code)	"1"(Ordinary), "2"(Extraordinary)	1	
16	Type Published Previously(Text)	"Ordinary"(1), "Extraordinary" (2)	140	
17	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
18	Ex Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
19	Actual Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
20	Meeting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
21	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '21'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
22	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '21'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.

3. 5. 8 Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call /Demand for Share Cash Out of SpecialControlling Shareholders Information (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 24 to Field 38.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1H'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee.	12	
9	Date of Board Meeting	YYYYMMDD	8	
10	Meeting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable. NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders	8	
11	Record Date	Record Date for Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable. NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders.	8	
12	Effective Date	Effective Date for Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call and Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
13	Local Code of Consideration for	If undetermined, "space (9 single bites)" will be set. In case of unlisted company or Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling	9	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Acquisition	Shareholders, NULL is set.		
14	Reserved Field	Null is set.	240	
15	NameofConsiderationforAcquisition	If undetermined, "space (1 single bites)" will be set. In case of unlisted company or Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders, NULL is set.	240	
16	ISIN of Consideration for Acquisition	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. In case of unlisted company or Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders, NULL is set.	12	
17	Ratio (Old Shares)	 When the consideration exchange ratio is displayed as (Old Exchange Ratio : New Exchange Ratio), The "Old Exchange Ratio" is set. If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
18	Ratio (New Shares)	When the consideration exchange ratio is displayed as (Old Exchange Ratio : New Exchange Ratio), The "New Exchange Ratio" is set. If undetermined, "9999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable. NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
19	Cash Consideration	Cash consideration for one Class Share subject to Wholly Call or cash consideration for one share upon the Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders. (Unit:1 yen) (The amount is a forecast amount disclosed by the stock's issuer company, and the actual amount of the consideration may differ from the forecast amount due to an adjustment for fractions calculated.) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
20	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
21	Last Trading Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
22	Delisting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
23	Remarks		450	
24	Date of Board Meeting Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
25	Meeting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
		NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders.		
26	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable. NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders.	8	
27	Effective Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
28	Local Code of Consideration for Acquisition Published Previously	If undetermined, "space (9 single bites)" will be set. In case of unlisted company or Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders, NULL is set.	9	
29	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	240	
30	Name of Consideration for Acquisition Published Previously	If undetermined, "space (1 single bites)" will be set. In case of unlisted company or Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders, NULL is set.	240	
31	ISIN of Consideration for Acquisition Published Previously	If undetermined, "space (12 single bites)" will be set. In case of unlisted company or Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders, NULL is set.	12	
32	Ratio Published Previously (Old Share)	If undetermined, "999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable. NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Specia IControlling Shareholders.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
33	,	If undetermined, "99999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable. NULL is set in case of Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders.	21	See Attachment 3 for more details.
34	Cash Consideration Published Previously	Cash consideration for one Class Share subject to Wholly Call or cash consideration for one share upon the Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders. (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "9999999999999999999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	26	See Attachment 3 for more details.
35	Actual Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
36	Last Trading Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
37	Delisting Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
38	Remarks Published Previously		450	
39	CA Reference	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn	15	See Attachment 1

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Number	YYYYMMDD : Announcement date		for more details.
		xx : '1H'(Fixed identifier)		
		nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date		
40	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1H'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
41	Type(Code)	"1" (Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders), "2" (Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call)	1	
42	Type(Text)	"Demand for Share Cash Out of Special Controlling Shareholders" (1), Acquisition of Class Shares subject to Wholly Call (2)	140	

3. 5. 9 Change in Company Name Information

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1J'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1" (indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "3" (indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1) , "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee.	12	
9	Effective Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If Status is "D.Date" Null will
10	Reserved Field	Null is set.	240	be set.
11	Reserved Field	Null is set.	240	
12	English Company Name (Before Change)	English company name before change.	240	
13	English Company Name (After Change)	English company name (As of Effective Date)	240	
14	Reserved Field	Null is set.	240	
15	Reserved Field	Null is set.	240	
16	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1J(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.

Change in Company Name Information previously provided will be provided once again when there is another change (other than company name changes) in the same issue, and the effective date of that change occurs on the same day or before the effective date of the company name change. The date of the second provision of Change in Company Name Information will be the same date as the provision of information on that different change.

Change in Company Name Information will be provided, even when there is only a change in Japanese company name of the issue.

3. 5. 10 Change in Trading Unit Information

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1L'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1) , "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee. Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee.	12	
9	Trading Unit (Before Change)	Increment: 1 share	8	See Attachment 3 for more details.
10	Trading Unit	Increment: 1 share If undetermined, "99999999" will be set.	8	If Status is "D.Date" Null will be set.
11	Effective Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If Status is "D.Date" Null will be set.
12	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1L(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.

Change in Trading Unit Information previously provided will be provided once again when there is another change (other than trading unit changes) in the same issue, and the effective date of that change occurs on the same day or before the effective date of the trading unit change. The date of the second provision of Change in Trading Unit Information will be the same date as the provision of information on that different change.

3. 5. 11 **Other Events Information** (If the "Status" is "New", no data will be set from Field 22 to Field 32 and from Field 58 to Field 80.)

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is either "Revised" or "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '25'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "2"(indicates the record is revised and set as "Revised" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), " Revised"(2), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Date of Board Meeting	YYYYMMDD In cases Issuer's Request for General Shareholders Notification, the day when the information is provided in Target is set in principle.	8	
7	Event (Code)	"1"(Allotment of Stock), "2" (Allotment of Subscription Rights), "3" (Offering of Subscription Rights to Shareholders), "4" (Non Cash Dividend), "5" (Issuer's Request for General Shareholders Notification), "6"(Company Split by Split-off), "7"(Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary), "9" (Other Events)	1	
8	Event(Text)	"Allotment of Stock" (1), "Allotment of Subscription Rights" (2), "Offering of Subscription Rights to Shareholders" (3), "Non Cash Dividend" (4), "Issuer's Request for General Shareholders Notification" (5), "Company Split by Split-off"(6), "Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary"(7) "Other Events" (9)	140	
9	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
10	Name	Company name	240	
11	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	12	
12	Record Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
13	Ex Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
14	Actual Record Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
15	Effective Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
16	Subscription Start	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
17	Subscription End	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
18	Ratio 1 (Old Securities)	Allotment ratio (The number of shares to which new shares of subscription warrants will be alloted.) If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
19	Ratio 1 (New Securities)	Allotment ratio (The number of allotted shares or subscription warrants) If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
20	Issue Price	Issue price of subscription warrants Increment : 1yen If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
21	Remarks		450	
22	Date of Board Meeting Published Previously	YYYYMMDD	8	
23	Record Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
24	Ex Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
25	Actual Record Date Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
26	Effective Date Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
27	Subscription Start Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
28	Subscription End Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
29	Ratio 1 Published Previously(Old	If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Securities)			
30	Ratio 1 Published Previously(New Securities)	If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
31	Issue Price Published Previously	Unit : 1yen If undetermined, "99999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable or without contribution.	22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
32	Remarks Published Previously		450	
33	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '25'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
34	Previous Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '25'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date Null is set if not applicable.	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
35	Meeting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
36	Local Code of allotted issue	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee. Set when there is a listing of shares, class shares, or subscription warrants due to an allotment. Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
37	ISIN of allotted issue	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee. Set when there is a listing of shares, class shares, or subscription warrants due to an allotment. If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
38	Exercise Price	Exercise price of subscription warrants. Set when there is an issue of subscription warrants. (Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "999999999999999999999999999999999999	22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
39	Start Date of Exercisable Period	Start date of period in which subscription warrants may be exercised. Set when there is an issue of subscription warrants.	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
		YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.		
40	End Date of Exercisable Period	End date of period in which subscription warrants may be exercised. Set when there is an issue of subscription warrants. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
41	Local Code of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants	Local code of shares underlying subscription warrants. Set when shares underlying subscription warrants are listed. If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
42	ISIN of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants	ISIN of shares underlying subscription warrants. Set when shares underlying subscription warrants are listed. If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
43	Ratio 2 (Old Securities)	Number of subscription warrants. Set when there is an issue of subscription warrants. If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details. In usual cases, "1" will be set.
44	Ratio 2 (New Securities)	Number of shares underlying subscription warrants. Set when there is an issue of subscription warrants. If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
45	Possibility of Subscription Warrant Transfer (Code)	Set when there is an issue of subscription warrants. "1" (possible), "0" (not possible), "9" (not determined yet) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
46	Possibility of Subscription Warrant Transfer (Text)	Set when there is an issue of subscription warrants. "possible"(1), "not possible"(2), "not determined yet"(9) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
47	Restriction of Subscription Warrant Exercise for Nonresident (Code)	"1" (present), "0" (absent), "9" (not determined yet) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
48	Restriction of	"present" (1), "absent" (0), "not determined yet" (9) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
49	Listing Date of	Listing date of stocks, class shares or subscription warrants issued through share allotment.	8	If the same issue

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Allotted Issue	Set when allotted stocks, class shares or subscription warrants are listed. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.		has already been listed, NULL is set.
50	Last Trading Date of Allotted Issue	Last trading date of class shares and subscription warrants allotted. Set when allotted class shares and subscription warrants are delisted. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
51	Delisting Date of Allotted Issue	Delisting date of class shares and subscription warrants allotted. Set when allotted class shares and subscription warrants are delisted. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
52	Listing Date of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants	Listing date of shares underlying subscription warrants. Set when shares underlying subscription warrants are listed. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
53	Last Trading Date of Shares Underlying Share Warrants	Last trading date of shares underlying subscription warrants. Set when shares underlying subscription warrants are delisted. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
54	Delisting Date of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants	Delisting date of shares underlying subscription warrants. Set when shares underlying subscription warrants are delisted. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
55	Commitment Type Rights Offering Identifier	Commitment type rights offering (allotment of subscription warrants) Set when there is an allotment of subscription warrants. "1" (commitment type) NULL is set in case other than commitment type.	1	
56	Acquisition Day	Acquisition day of subscription warrants subject to call at commitment type rights offering. Set when there is a commitment type rights offering. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
57	Payment Day of Consideration for Acquisition	Payment day of consideration for acquisition of subscription warrants at commitment type rights offering. Set when there is a commitment type rights offering. YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
58	Meeting Date	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.)	8	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Published Previously	NULL is set if not applicable.		
59	Local Code of Allotted Issue Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
60	ISIN of Allotted Issue Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
61	Exercise Price Published Previously	(Unit:1 yen) If undetermined, "99999999999999999999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	22	See Attachment 3 for more details.
62	Start Date of Exercisable Period Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
63	End Date of Exercisable Period Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
64	Local Code of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants Published Previously	Local code of shares underlying subscription warrants. Set when shares underlying subscription warrants are listed. If undetermined, "space(9 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	9	
65	ISIN of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants Published Previously	If undetermined, "space(12 single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	12	
66	Ratio 2 (Old Securities) Published Previously	If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details. In usual cases, "1" will be set.
67	Ratio 2 (New Securities) Published Previously	If undetermined, "99999.9999" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	11	See Attachment 3 for more details.
68	Possibility of Subscription Warrant Transfer Published Previously (Code)	"1" (possible), "0" (not possible), "9" (not determined yet) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
69	Possibility of	"possible"(1), "not possible"(2), "not determined yet"(9)	140	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Subscription Warrant Transfer Published Previously (Text)	NULL is set if not applicable.		
70	Restriction of Subscription Warrant Exercise for Nonresident Published Previously (Code)	"1" (present), "0" (absent), "9" (not determined yet) NULL is set if not applicable.	1	
71	Restriction of Subscription Warrant Exercise for Nonresident Published Previously (Text)	"present" (1), "absent" (0), "not determined yet" (9) NULL is set if not applicable.	140	
72	Listing Date of Allotted Issue Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.(Excludes common stock at Company Split by Split-off and Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary.)
73	Last Trading Date of Allotted Issue Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
74	Delisting Date of Allotted Issue Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
75	Listing Date of Shares Underlying Subscription	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Warrants Published Previously			set.
76	Last Trading Date of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
77	Delisting Date of Shares Underlying Subscription Warrants Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	If the same issue has already been listed, NULL is set.
78	Identifier of Commitment Type Rights Offering Published Previously	"1" (commitment type) NULL is set in case other than commitment type.	1	
79	Acquisition Day Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
80	Payment Day of Consideration for Acquisition Published Previously	YYYYMMDD(When the date is undetermined, "29991231" is set.) NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
81	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	240	
82	Name of Allotted issue (Revised)	Set for Company Split by Split-off or Share Distribution for Splitting off Wholly Owned Subsidiary. If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	240	
83	Reserved Field	NULL is set.	240	
84	Name of Allotted issue (Previous)	If undetermined, "space(single bites)" will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	240	

3. 5. 12 **Delisting Information**

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date/Time	YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI(Date/Time when the record is provided on website)	16	
2	Announcement Date/Time Published Previously	If "Status" is "D.date", previous announcement date/time is set as YYYY/MM/DD HH:MI If "Status" is "New", NULL is set.	16	
3	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1N'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.
4	Status(Code)-Latest Information	"1"(indicates the record is a new announcement and set as "New" in field 5) "3"(indicates the record is deleted and set as "D.Date" in field 5)	1	
5	Status(Text)-Latest Information	"New"(1), "D.Date"(3)	140	
6	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
7	Name	Company name	240	
8	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee.	12	
9	Stock Exchange (Code)	"01" (TSE), "02" (OSE), "03" (NSE), "06" (FSE), "08" (SSE), "11" (JSDA GS/Others)	2	If Status is "D.Date" Null will
10	Stock Exchange (Text)	"TSE" (01), "OSE" (02), "NSE" (03), "FSE" (06), "SSE" (08), "GS/Others" (11)	140	be set.
11	Delisting Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
12	CA Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '1N(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	See Attachment 1 for more details.

3. 5. 13 Change in Securities Master Information

(For No. 12 to No. 39 and No. 67 to No. 94, Null will be set if "Effective Date" is earlier than new listing date (i.e. initial data for local code, etc.))

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
1	Announcement Date	YYYY/MM/DD	10	
2	Reference Number	YYYYMMDDxxnnnn YYYYMMDD : Announcement date xx : '01'(Fixed identifier) nnnnn : counted up from 00001 on each announcement date	15	
3	Effective Date	YYYYMMDD	8	
4	Local Code (As of Announcement Date)	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee (As of Announcement Date) Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
5	Name (As of Announcement Date)	English company name (As of Announcement Date)	240	
6	ISIN (As of Announcement Date)	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee (As of Announcement Date)	12	
7	Local Code	Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee (As of Effective Date) Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve code.	9	
8	Reserved Field	Null is set for the time being.	240	
9	ISIN	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee (As of Effective Date)	12	
10	Reserved Field	Null is set for the time being.	240	
11	English Company Name	English Company Name (As of Effective Date)	240	
12	TSE Market Section(Code)	"0111"(Prime),"0112"(Standard),"0113"(Growth), "0105" (TOKYO PRO Market), "0109" (others), In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
13	TSE Market Section(Text)	"PRM"(0111),"STD"(0112),"GRT"(0113)"TPM"(0105), "others" (0109), In all other cases, null is set.	140	
14	TSE Margin Transaction (Code)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
15	TSE Margin Transaction (Text)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
16	OSE Market		4	
10	Section(Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
17	OSE Market		140	
17	Section(Text)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
18	OSE Margin	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue)	1	
10	Transaction (Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.		
19	OSE Margin	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0)	140	
19	Transaction (Text)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
20	NSE Market		4	
20	Section(Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
21	NSE Market		140	
21	Section(Text)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
22	NSE Margin		1	
	Transaction (Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.		
23	NSE Margin		140	
	Transaction (Text)	In all other cases, null is set.		
24	FSE Market		4	
	Section(Code) FSE Market	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.		
25	FSE Market Section(Text)	"*" (0601), "QB"(0602), "others"(0609) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
	FSE Margin			
26	Transaction (Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
	FSE Margin			
27	Transaction (Text)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
	SSE Market			
28	Section(Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
	SSE Market			
29	Section(Text)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
	SSE Margin			
30	Transaction (Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
	SSE Margin	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0)		
31	Transaction (Text)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
	JQ Market			
32	Section(Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
	JQ Market			
33	Section(Text)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	140	
			1 1	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
		In all other cases, null is set.		
34	JQ Margin Transaction (Code)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
35	JQ Margin Transaction (Text)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
36	JSDA Market Section(Code)	"1101" (GS/Others) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
37	JSDA Market Section(Text)	"GS/Others" (1101) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
38	JSDA Margin Transaction (Code)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
39	JSDA Margin Transaction (Text)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
40	Sector(Code)		4	See Attachment 2 for more details
41	Sector(Text)		140	See Attachment 2 for more details
42	Fiscal Term	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.)	4	
43	Interim Term	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) If there is no interim term, '0000' will be set.	4	
44	Dividend Record Date 1 (Article of Incorporation)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	Null is set for REIT, ETF and other issues.
45	Dividend Record Date 2 (Article of Incorporation)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
46	Dividend Record Date 3 (Article of Incorporation)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
47	Dividend Record Date 4 (Article of Incorporation)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
48	Dividend Record Date 5 (Article of Incorporation)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
49	Dividend Record Date 6 (Article of	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Incorporation)			
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD		
50	Date 1 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set.	8	
	term 1)	NULL is set if not applicable.		
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD		
51	Date 2 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set.	8	
	term 1)	NULL is set if not applicable.		
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD		
52	Date 3 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set.	8	Null is set for
	term 1)	NULL is set if not applicable.		REIT, ETF and
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD		other issues.
53	Date 4 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set.	8	
	term 1)	NULL is set if not applicable.		-
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD	-	
54	Date 5 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set.	8	
	term 1)	NULL is set if not applicable.		-
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD	0	
55	Date 6 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set.	8	
	term 1) Dividend Record	NULL is set if not applicable. YYYYMMDD		
EC			0	
56	Date 1 (Irregular term 2)	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD		-
57	Date 2 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set.	8	
57	term 2)	NULL is set if not applicable.	0	Null is set for
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD		REIT, ETF and
58	Date 3 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set.	8	other issues.
00	term 2)	NULL is set if not applicable.	0	
	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD		
59	Date 4 (Irregular	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set.	8	
	term 2)	NULL is set if not applicable.	C C	
60	Trading Unit	Unit : 1	13	
61	Registrar		240	
-		Unique securities code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee	-	
~~	Local Code (Before	(As of Effective Date)	0	l
62	Change)	Data consists of 9 digits: a 4 digit single bite space, the 4 digit code, and one digit reserve	9	
		code.		

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
63	Reserved Field	Null is set for the time being.	240	
64	ISIN (Before Change)	ISIN code assigned by Securities Identification Code Committee (As of Effective Date)	12	
65	Reserved Field	Null is set for the time being.	240	
66	English Company Name (Before Change)	English Company Name	240	
67	TSE Market Section(Code) (Before Change)	"0111" (Prime)、"0112" (Standard)、"0113" (Growth), "0105" (TOKYO PRO Market), "0109" (others), In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
68	TSE Market Section(Text) (Before Change)	"PRM"(0111),"STD"(0112),"GRT"(0113),"TPM"(0105), "others" (0109), In all other cases, null is set.	140	
69	TSE Margin Transaction (Code) (Before Change)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
70	TSE Margin Transaction (Text) (Before Change)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
71	OSE Market Section(Code) (Before Change)	"0201" (1 st Section), "0202" (2 nd section), "0204" (OSE JASDAQ), "0209" (others) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
72	OSE Market Section(Text) (Before Change)	"1" (0201), "2" (0202), "HJQ" (0204), "others" (0209) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
73	OSE Margin Transaction (Code) (Before Change)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
74	OSE Margin Transaction (Text) (Before Change)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
75	NSE Market Section(Code) (Before Change)	"0301" (NSE Premier), "0302" (NSE Main), "0303" (NSE Next), "0309" (others) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
76	NSE Market Section(Text) (Before Change)	"NPR" (0301), "NMA" (0302), "NNX" (0303), "others" (0309) In all other cases, null is set.	140	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
77	NSE Margin Transaction (Code) (Before Change)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
78	NSE Margin Transaction (Text) (Before Change)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
79	FSE Market Section(Code) (Before Change)	"0601"(Main Board), "0602"(Q-Board), "0609"(others) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
80	FSE Market Section(Text) (Before Change)	"*" (0601), "QB"(0602), "others"(0609) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
81	FSE Margin Transaction (Code) (Before Change)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
82	FSE Margin Transaction (Text) (Before Change)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
83	SSE Market Section(Code) (Before Change)	"0801" (Main Board), "0802"(Ambitious), "0809" (others) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
84	SSE Market Section(Text) (Before Change)	"*" (0801), "AM"(0802), "others" (0809) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
85	SSE Margin Transaction (Code) (Before Change)	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
86	SSE Margin Transaction (Text) (Before Change)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
87	JQ Market Section(Code) (Before Change)	"1001" (Main Board), "1002" (NEO) In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
88	JQ Market Section(Text) (Before Change)	"*"(1001), "NEO" (1002) In all other cases, null is set.	140	
89	JQ Margin	"1" (Margin Issue), "2" (Loan Issue), "0" (Non Margin and Loan Issue)	1	

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Transaction (Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.		
	(Before Change)			
90	JQ Margin Transaction (Text)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0)	140	
90	(Before Change)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
	JSDA Market	"1101"(GS/Others)		
91	Section(Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	4	
	(Before Change) JSDA Market			
92	Section(Text) (Before	"GS/Others"(1101)	140	
52	Change)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
	JSDA Margin	"1"(Margin Issue), "2"(Loan Issue), "0"(Non Margin and Loan Issue)		
93	Transaction (Code)	In all other cases, " "(single bite space) is set.	1	
	(Before Change) JSDA Margin			
94	JSDA Margin Transaction (Text)	"Margin"(1), " Loan"(2), "single bite space"(0)	140	
0-1	(Before Change)	In all other cases, null is set.	140	
95	Sector(Code)		4	See Attachment 2
55	(Before Change)		-	for more details.
96	Sector(Text) (Before Change)		140	See Attachment 2 for more details.
	Fiscal Term (Before			
97	Change)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.)	4	
98	Interim Term (Before	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.)	4	
00	Change)	If there is no interim term, '0000' will be set.		
	Dividend Record Date 1 (Article of	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.)		
99	Incorporation)	NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
	(Before Change)			
	Dividend Record			Null is set for
100	Date 2 (Article of	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.)	4	REIT, ETF and
	Incorporation)	NULL is set if not applicable.		other issues.
	(Before Change) Dividend Record			-
104	Date 3 (Article of	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.)		
101	Incorporation)	NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
	(Before Change)			

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
102	Dividend Record Date 4 (Article of Incorporation) (Before Change)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
103	Dividend Record Date 5 (Article of Incorporation) (Before Change)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
104	Dividend Record Date 6 (Article of Incorporation) (Before Change)	MMDD (0299 is set if it is end of February.) NULL is set if not applicable.	4	
105	Dividend Record Date 1 (Irregular term 1) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
106	Dividend Record Date 2 (Irregular term 1) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
107	Dividend Record Date 3 (Irregular term 1) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	Null is set for REIT, ETF and
108	Dividend Record Date 4 (Irregular term 1) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	other issues.
109	Dividend Record Date 5 (Irregular term 1) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
110	Dividend Record Date 6 (Irregular term 1) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the first irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
111	Dividend Record	YYYYMMDD	8	Null is set for

No.	Field Name	Data Layout	Len	Remarks
	Date 1 (Irregular term 2) (Before Change)	If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.		REIT, ETF and other issues.
112	Dividend Record Date 2 (Irregular term 2) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
113	Dividend Record Date 3 (Irregular term 2) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
114	Dividend Record Date 4 (Irregular term 2) (Before Change)	YYYYMMDD If there is a change in fiscal term, dividend record date in the second irregular term will be set. NULL is set if not applicable.	8	
115	Trading Unit (Before Change)	Increment: 1 share	13	
116	Registrar (Before Change)		240	

*No. 16-19, 71-74

"OSE" indicates Osaka Securities Exchange, before the merger with TSE effective in July 2013.

*No. 32-35, 87-90

"JQ" indicates JASDAQ, before the merger with OSE effected on 2010/10/12.

4. In Case of System Failure

Users will be notified by e-mail if there is a system malfunction. Please refer to "Specification for Connecting to Data Feed Server" for details.

5. Contact

JPX Market Innovation & Research, Inc. Client Service Department TEL: +81-50-3377-7831 E-mail: <u>tminfo@jpx.co.jp</u> Appendix 1 (Details on Reference Number)

This service assigns a unique reference number to each corporate action event /record. There are three types of reference numbers:.

1) CA Reference Number

Reference number assigned to each corporate action event

2) Reference Number

Reference number assigned to each record

3) Previous Reference Number

If the record is revised or deleted, the reference number for the record prior to revision or deletion will be set at the bottom of the record within the file

(Example)

The following shows how the three types of reference numbers are set for one specific company.

- (1) 6th Feb Dividend information is provided as a new record (New)
- (2) 7th Feb Dividend information is revised (Revised)
- (3) 8th Feb Dividend information is deleted (D.Date)
- (4) 9th Feb Rights Issue information is provided as a new record (New)

	C A Reference Number	Reference Number	Previous Reference Number
(1)	1	1	
(2)	1	2	1
(3)	1	3	2
(4)	4	4	

r				
0050	Fishery, Agriculture and Forestry	5200	Warehousing and Harbor Transportation Service	
1050	Mining	5250	Information & Communication	
2050	Construction	6050	Wholesale Trade	
3050	Foods	6100	Retail Trade	
3100	Textiles and Apparels	7050	Banks	
3150	Pulp and Paper	7100	Securities and Commodities Futures	
3200	Chemicals	7150	Insurance	
3250	Pharmaceutical	7200	Other Financing Business	
3300	Oil and Coal Products	8050	Real Estate	
3350	Rubber Products	9050	Services	
3400	Glass and Ceramics Products	9999	(Others)	
3450	Iron and Steel			
3500	Nonferrous Metals	* If Sector(Code) is 9999, "Null" will be set to Sector (Text).		
3550	Metal Products			
3600	Machinery			
3650	Electric Appliances			
3700	Transportation Equipment			
3750	Precision Instruments			
3800	Other Products			
4050	Electric Power and Gas			
5050	Land Transportation			
5100	Marine Transportation			
5150	Air Transportation			

Appendix 3 Posting of Numerical Data

LEN values noted for numerical data include codes and decimal points (with the exception of codes and dates). Below is the display format to be followed for each type of data.

No	LEN	Display Format	Content	Remarks
1	8	NNNNNN	Integer (8)	
2	11	sNNNN.NNNN	Code(1) + Integer(5) + Decimal Point(1) + Fraction(4)	
3	21	\$NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN	Code(1) + Integer(9) + Decimal Point(1) + Fraction(10)	
4	22	\$NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN	Code(1) + Integer(14) + Decimal Point(1) + Fraction(6)	
5	26	\$NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN	Code(1) + Integer(20) + Decimal Point(1) + Fraction(4)	
6	27	\$NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN	Code(1) + Integer(20) + Decimal Point(1) + Fraction(5)	
7	28	\$NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN	Code(1) + Integer(20) + Decimal Point(1) + Fraction(6)	

s : Indicates sign. Only displayed when negative.

N : Indicates numerical data.